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May 17, 2004

Mr. Gene Wilhoit 

Commissioner of Education 

Kentucky Department of Education 

Capitol Plaza Tower - 500 Mero Street 

Frankfort, KY  40601 

Dear Commissioner Wilhoit:

The purpose of this letter is to inform you of the results of the Office of Special Education Programs’ (OSEP’s) recent verification visit to Kentucky.  As indicated in my letter to you of September 9, 2003, OSEP is conducting verification visits to a number of States as part of our Continuous Improvement and Focused Monitoring System (CIFMS) for ensuring compliance with, and improving performance under, Parts B and C of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA).  We conducted our visit to Kentucky during the week of November 17, 2003. 
The purpose of our verification reviews of States is to determine how they use their general supervision, State-reported data collection, and State-wide assessment systems to assess and improve State performance, and to protect child and family rights. The purposes of the verification visits are to:  (1) understand how the systems work at the State level; (2) determine how the State collects and uses data to make monitoring decisions; and (3) determine the extent to which the State’s systems are designed to identify and correct noncompliance. 

As part of the verification visit to the Kentucky Department of Education (KDE), OSEP staff met with Dr. Johnnie Grissom, Associate Commissioner, Ms. Judy Mallory, State Director of Special Education, and members of KDE’s staff who are responsible for: (1) the oversight of general supervision activities (including monitoring, mediation, complaint resolution, and impartial due process hearings); (2) the collection and analysis of State-reported data; and (3) ensuring participation in, and the reporting of student performance on, State-wide assessments.   Prior to and during the visit, OSEP staff reviewed a number of documents
, including the following:  (1) Kentucky’s Part B State Improvement Plan; (2) the State’s Biennial Performance Report for grant year 2000-2001; (3) Kentucky’s Continuous Monitoring Process (KCMP), 2002-2003 School Year; (4) KCMP Reporting Instrument; (5) 2002-2003 KCMP Review Form; (6) information from the State’s Website; (7) CATS [Commonwealth Accountability Testing System] Interpretative Guide; (8) 2002 Kentucky Performance Report; (9) selected Self Assessment files for Kentucky school districts; (10) 2002-2003 Monitoring Indicators at a Glance; (11) November 18, 2003 Memorandum on the special education due process work log; (12) KDE’s Scholastic Audit Process; and (13) the KDE’s Comprehensive District Improvement Planning Process.
OSEP also conducted a conference call on October 10, 2003, with a number of members of the Kentucky Steering Committee on Special Education, to hear their perspectives on the strengths and weaknesses of the State’s systems for general supervision, data collection, and State-wide Assessment.  Ms. Mallory participated in the call and assisted us by recommending and inviting the participants. 

The information provided by Ms. Mallory and her staff during the OSEP visit, together with the information that OSEP staff reviewed in preparation for the visit, greatly enhanced our understanding of KDE’s systems for general supervision, data collection and reporting, and Statewide assessment.  
General Supervision 

In reviewing KDE’s general supervision system, OSEP collected information regarding a number of elements, including whether the State: (1) has identified any barriers (e.g., limitations on authority, insufficient staff or other resources, etc.) that impede the State’s ability to identify and correct noncompliance; (2) has systemic, data-based, and reasonable approaches to identifying and correcting noncompliance; (3) utilizes guidance, technical assistance, follow-up, and—if necessary—sanctions, to ensure timely correction of noncompliance; (4) has dispute resolution systems that ensure the timely resolution of complaints and due process hearings; and (5) has mechanisms in place to compile and integrate data across systems (e.g., 618 State-reported data, due process hearings, complaints, mediation, large-scale assessments, previous monitoring results, etc.) to identify systemic issues and problems.

KDE is in the process of implementing the Improvement Plan that OSEP approved in a letter dated November 6, 2003.  The State’s Improvement Plan included strategies to address the following general supervision noncompliance issues (identified by the State in its Self-Assessment): a lack of effective procedures to identify noncompliance and ensure correction of identified noncompliance; and failure to ensure that all due process hearing and complaint decisions are rendered within required timelines.  OSEP’s November 6, 2003 letter requested that the State provide documentation to OSEP one year from the date of OSEP’s November 6, 2003 letter that the State has corrected each of the areas of noncompliance identified in OSEP’s letter, including the State’s lack of effective procedures to identify noncompliance and ensure correction of its identified noncompliance, and failure to ensure that all complaint and due process hearing decisions are rendered in a timely fashion.  Based on OSEP’s review of the State’s monitoring system during the verification visit, OSEP cannot determine that the State system for general supervision is reasonably calculated to identify noncompliance with all Part B requirements and ensure the correction of identified noncompliance.  In addition, OSEP cannot determine that the State is ensuring that all due process hearing decisions are rendered in a timely fashion.  OSEP asks that the State continue to keep OSEP informed of the State’s implementation of its Improvement Plan through its updated and final progress reports to OSEP on its Improvement Plan.  

Monitoring:  OSEP examined the key components of KDE’s oversight mechanism, i.e., KDE’s Scholastic Audit Process, the Kentucky Continuous Monitoring Process (KCMP), and the KDE’s Comprehensive District Improvement Planning Process.  In examining each component’s capacity to identify and correct deficiencies in the LEA’s implementation of the Part B requirements, OSEP found that, viewed as a whole, the various components lack the capacity to ensure that KDE identifies and corrects noncompliance with all the requirements of Part B.  Below is a discussion of each component. 

KDE’s Scholastic Audit Process  — KDE is required by the Kentucky Administrative Regulations (KAR) to conduct "audits" of schools that fail to meet their achievement goals for each biennium.  KDE’s Scholastic Audit Process uses the Standards and Indicators for School Improvement document as the measure of a school's preparedness for improvement.  Under this process, schools are measured for their preparedness by a classification process that categorizes schools as either Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3.  When a school is classified as Level 3 for two (2) consecutive accountability cycles, the school district is subject to a district audit conducted by a district evaluation team.  The team is to review each of the areas outlined in Section 5 of 703 KAR 5:130 and the district's implementation of the previous accountability cycle's school support plan.  The district audit team also is to evaluate the district responsibilities using the Standards and Indicators for School Improvement.  As a result of the three-tier ranking each year, KDE designates 90 schools from the Level 3 rank as low performing schools, subject to a review by a designated team that collects data and other information about the school’s performance, including classroom observations and interviews with school staff.  For the lowest third of the 90 schools selected, the review team is to be composed totally of KDE staff; for the middle third, the team would have only one KDE staff member; and for the remaining third of the schools, the team would be composed solely of district level members.  The composition of the review team may, or may not, include a person with special education expertise. Where no special education person is a member of the team, KDE staff is to train team members on special education issues.

Although special education may be included as part of the broader school review recommendations in the Scholastic Audit Process, generally, there are no specific citations of deficiencies or corrective actions relating exclusively to special education issues that result from the Scholastic Audit Process.  The evaluation teams do not routinely review the school district’s implementation of the specific requirements under the IDEA. 

Kentucky Continuous Monitoring Process — Another key component of KDE’s monitoring system is the Kentucky Continuous Monitoring Process (KCMP), designed to drive and support improved results for children and youth with disabilities.  Implementation of the KCMP is the responsibility of the Administration and Accountability Branch of the Division of Exceptional Children Services.   
KCMP is based on LEAs conducting annual self-assessments that are submitted to KDE for review, developing improvement plans based on the self-assessments, and successfully implementing the improvement plans.  LEAs are guided in the development of their self-assessments by a set of Local Indicators found in the KCMP Reporting Instrument that LEAs complete as part of this process.  KCMP identifies six (6) priority areas of concentration:

· Successful transition from early intervention programs (First Steps) to preschool

· Improved academic achievement for students with disabilities in the general curriculum/performance on statewide and district-wide assessments (CATS)

· Drop-out rates for students with disabilities compared to non-disabled peers

· Suspension/expulsion rates for students with disabilities compared to non-disabled peers and provision of appropriate educational services for these students

· Successful transition from high school to post secondary and adult life situations

· Parental involvement

A Collaborative Review Team (CRT), composed of general education teachers, special education teachers, administrators, parents, and, as needed, Regional Exceptional Children Consultants or Special Education Cooperative Staff, completes the self-assessment based on the six (6) priority areas specified above.  The CRT collects and reviews data to determine compliance with State and Federal regulations and to evaluate program performance.  Based upon a review of this data, the CRT completes the rating scale included in the KCMP Reporting Instrument for each appropriate indicator.  The KCMP Reporting instrument is not designed to evaluate the local agencies’ compliance with the Federal requirements not covered in these six priority areas.    

Within thirty (30) business days following the receipt of the LEA’s self-assessment results and plan for improvement, the KDE is to issue a written statement specifying either acceptance or rejection of the proposed plan.  If rejected, KDE is to specify the reasons for rejection and offers technical assistance, including a possible on-site visit by KDE staff and/or special education cooperative to assist in designing an approvable improvement plan.  Upon receiving KDE’s rejection of the improvement plan, the LEA has thirty (30) business days to submit a revised improvement plan. 

Failure of an LEA to show improvement after a reasonable period of time or a failure to implement the provisions of the plan results in progressive sanctions provided for in 707 KAR 1:380, Section 3, including, but not limited to, withholding of State and Federal funds.  Sanction procedures are to be initiated by KDE when an LEA fails to:

· show progress toward meeting the Local Indicators

· develop an improvement plan

· implement an approved improvement plan

· make progress on an approved improvement plan.

The KCMP, as understood by OSEP, provides no mechanism for KDE to verify that the data provided by the LEA’s self-assessment reflect conditions existing within the LEA to demonstrate the LEA’s compliance with the Part B requirements.  Specifically, KDE has no methods for verifying locally-reported Self-Assessment data (e.g. on-site visits). Although the LEA’s self-assessment may identify potential areas of noncompliance for the six priority areas, the lack of verification procedures raises serious questions about how KDE can ensure that LEAs comply with the requirements of Part B of IDEA addressed by the six priority areas.

KDE’s Comprehensive District Improvement Planning Process:  In addition, each LEA must participate in KDE’s Comprehensive District Improvement Planning Process (Planning Process).  The Planning process involves a look at all educational programs within the school district, including the special education program.  The Planning Process in a District has multiple steps, beginning with the development of statements that reflect the vision, mission, and beliefs of the District.  This is followed by a needs assessment in which data is studied to determine the priority needs of the district.  Overall goals are written to address the priority needs.  Next is an analysis of the causes of those needs.  Once root cause of the needs are identified, objectives can be written that will eliminate district-wide barriers to student learning and activities are designed to implement the objectives.  Then, the District must look at available resources to determine how to fund the activity.  In developing the District Improvement Plan, the LEA has no specific directions as to what special education data, if any, needs to be considered in the development of the Improvement Plan.  Once the District Improvement Plan (Plan) is developed, the District planning committee will monitor the activities laid out in the plan to ensure that they are implemented effectively.  Once implemented, procedures must be set in place to evaluate the effectiveness of each activity.  As these activities are evaluated the Plan should be revised to modify or eliminate weak activities and create new ones if needed to accomplish the objectives.

A final part of the plan is a set of assurances, guaranteeing that the planning process and final Plan document meet applicable legal requirements.  The Superintendent submits an electronic mail message to KDE stating that the Plan and Planning Process are in full compliance with all State and Federal statutes and regulations.  Three of the assurances specifically relate to Part B of IDEA, concerning (1) proper expenditure of funds, (2) policies and procedures that are consistent with Part B of IDEA, and (3) the establishment of a full educational opportunity goal.

As part of the Planning Process, KDE requires LEAs to submit an annual grant application (local application) as a precondition to the receipt of IDEA, Part B funds.  The local applications consist of several components that must be submitted to KDE as part of the Grant Approval Checklists for IDEA-B and include: 

· budgetary information

· various annual data reports

· other information such as Maintenance of Effort Data, Corrective Action Plan Approved and Implemented, and Policies, Procedures and any Amendments Approved and Board Adopted. 
As described above,  KDE utilizes several stand-alone components to fulfill its general supervisory  responsibilities.  KDE staff maintained that these systems were sufficient to ensure the identification and correction of noncompliance throughout the State; the State did not identify any barriers (e.g., limitations on authority, insufficient staff or other resources, etc.) that impede its ability to identify and correct noncompliance.  However, these components, taken together, do not ensure that KDE identifies and corrects noncompliance with all requirements of the IDEA.  In addition, OSEP was unable to identify mechanisms in the State to compile and integrate data across various other sources available to it through activities such as 618 data collection, due process hearings, complaints, mediation, previous monitoring, etc., in a manner that permits KDE to identify systemic issues and problems.  Each of these sources may produce critical data that KDE may use in fulfilling its general supervisory authority, but there is no clear articulation of the methodology that KDE uses to ensure the integration of the various data sources.

Based on OSEP’s review of the State’s monitoring system during the verification visit, OSEP cannot determine that the State system for general supervision is reasonably calculated to identify noncompliance with all Part B requirements and ensure the correction of identified noncompliance.  Viewed as a whole, the various components of KDE’s monitoring system lack the capacity to ensure that KDE identifies and corrects noncompliance with all the requirements of Part B.

Dispute Resolution:  KDE’s system for due process hearings has not been effective in ensuring compliance with the requirements of 34 CFR §300.511(a) and (c), requiring that KDE ensure that a final decision is reached in each due process hearing and a copy of the decision mailed to each of the parties not later than 45 days after the receipt of a request for a hearing, unless the hearing officer grants specific extensions of time beyond the 45 day timeline at the request of a party.  A State education agency must ensure that if a hearing officer exceeds the 45-day timeline, there is documentation that the hearing officer extended the timeline at the request of a party and for a specific period of time​.  

OSEP reviewed KDE’s November 18, 2003 Memorandum, prepared during OSEP’s Verification Visit, concerning due process cases requested in 2001-2002 and 2002-2003. The data presented revealed that for 2001-2002, of the 28 due process hearings requested, 20 (71%) were resolved within 45 days or within a defined extension contained in a Pre-Hearing Order at the request of one party or the agreement of both parties.  One of the 28 requests (4%) was resolved less than ten days late and seven of 28 requests were resolved more than ten days late.  In 2002-2003, of the 19 due process hearings requested, 12 (63%) were resolved within the 45-day time frame.  One (5%) was resolved one day late and six (32%) were resolved more than ten days late.  By November 18, 2003 of the 2003-2004 school year, there had been one hearing decision rendered and it was one day late.  The November 18, 2003 Memorandum analyzed the causes for the failure to meet the timelines for many of the late hearing decisions, such as parents’ inaction in pursuing the hearing, hearing officers’ actions, and extenuating circumstances in particular hearings.  

In a November 6, 2003 letter to KDE responding to Kentucky’s Improvement plan, OSEP concluded that KDE was not in compliance with 34 CFR §300.511 in that hearing decisions were not completed within 45 days and specific extensions of time at the request of either party and granted by the hearing officer were not documented.  KDE was directed to correct the noncompliance as soon as possible and submit documentation of the corrective actions no later than November 6, 2004.  KDE’s November 18, 2003 Memorandum evidences efforts KDE has taken to track the timelines of the due process hearings and troubleshoot the reasons for not meeting the timelines in specific instances.  However, it does not show that KDE has corrected the failure to comply with 34 CFR §300.511.  KDE must submit to OSEP documentation of the corrections required in the November 6, 2003 letter no later than November 6, 2004.   

Complaint Management and Mediation:  KDE’s complaint and mediation processes comply with Part B of IDEA requirements.  The complaint management system functions through a district-level investigatory model.  Under this model, complaints, filed with KDE are forwarded to the originating District for investigation and resolution.  At the time the complaint is transmitted to the District, the District is given five (5) days to inform KDE of the District’s intent to conduct an investigation.  If the District declines to investigate, KDE conducts the investigation.  The District must submit the results of its complaint investigation and resolution to KDE for review.  At that time, KDE contacts the complainant by letter informing them of the results of the investigation, and soliciting any additional input before a complaint is closed.  

KDE reported previous difficulties meeting the 60-day timeline for investigating and resolving complaints.  Between July 1, 2002 and June 30, 2003, only 55% of complaints (17 of 31) had been resolved within 60 days.  KDE attributed this to health problems of its complaint investigator during that time period.  To improve its ability to meet the 60-day timeline, KDE hired a paralegal in Spring 2003 to assist with the complaint management process.  OSEP reviewed KDE’s complaint log for the period beginning July 2003 (subsequent to the addition of the paralegal).  At the time of OSEP’s visit, 16 complaints had been filed: for five of the 16, the 60-day complaint investigation period had not yet elapsed.  For the remaining 11 complaints, KDE’s log showed that ten had been investigated and resolved within 60 days, while the timeline for the eleventh complaint had been extended by five days to allow time to collect additional information from the parent and district.  Therefore, it appears that KDE has allocated sufficient resources to its complaint management unit to ensure that the 60-day time period for investigating and resolving complaints is met.

KDE allows parties with disputes involving identification, evaluation, or the educational placement of children with disabilities to resolve those disputes by requesting mediation.  The procedures contained in 707 KAR 1:340, Section 6 apply to the process.  KDE maintain a list of individuals who are qualified mediators and knowledgeable in laws and regulations relating to the provision of special education and related services.  KDE provides training to the mediators including the requirements that:  1) an agreement reached by the parties to the dispute in the mediation process must be set forth in a written mediation agreement; and 2) discussions that occur during the mediation process must be confidential and may not be used as evidence in any subsequent due process hearing or civil proceeding and the parties to the mediation process will be required to sign a confidentiality pledge prior to the commencement of the process.

OSEP’s November 6, 2003 letter responding to KDE’s Improvement Plan requested that by November 6, 2004 (one year from the date of OSEP’s November 6, 2003 letter), the State provide documentation to OSEP that the State has corrected each of the areas of noncompliance identified in OSEP’s letter, including the its lack of effective procedures to identify noncompliance and ensure correction of its identified noncompliance, and failure to ensure that all complaint and due process hearing decisions are rendered in a timely fashion.  With regard to the State’s monitoring responsibility, KDE must develop and adopt procedures that, when taken together, review all requirements that public agencies are responsible for implementing.  The procedures must: (1) extend to al requirements and all service providers under the IDEA; (2) require that the State utilize and review information form all sources to identify potential noncompliance; (3) require that the State investigate all potential noncompliance; and (4) require that any identified noncompliance is corrected.

Collection of Data under Section 618 of the IDEA 

In its review of KDE’s system for data collection and reporting, OSEP collected information regarding a number of elements, including whether the State:  (1) provides clear guidance and ongoing training to local programs/public agencies regarding requirements and procedures for reporting data under section 618 of the IDEA; (2) implements procedures to determine whether the individuals who enter and report data at the local and/or regional level do so accurately and in a manner that is consistent with the State’s procedures, OSEP guidance, and section 618; and (3) implements procedures for identifying anomalies in data that are reported, and correcting any inaccuracies; and (4) has identified any barriers, (e.g., limitations on authority, sufficient staff or other resources, etc.) that impede the State’s ability to accurately, reliably and validly collect and report data under section 618.

KDE’s Division of Exceptional Children Services (DECS) is responsible for collecting the student and personnel data necessary to submit the State’s Section 618 data report to OSEP.  Presently, KDE furnishes all LEAs with a downloadable Microsoft Excel file on which to enter the data required for the Section 618 Report.  District Superintendents certify the data reports prior to transmission.  KDE is presently in the process of State-wide implementation of the Special Education Tracking System (SETS) software program.  SETS is case management software that tracks, among other elements, student attendance. With full implementation, SETS will capture the Section 618 data input at each LEA and automatically transmit the data to DECS, thereby eliminating the use of the Microsoft Excel worksheets, and the compilation tasks associated with their use.  SETS currently is used at the District level, but the SETS data is not transmitted to DECS.  KDE explained that the task of migrating SETS to State-level implementation is compounded by the lack of unique student identifiers across districts. 

To ensure the accuracy of the Section 618 data, DECS has built certain error and edit checks into the SETS software program that, for example, do not permit districts to submit data that include entry errors for age and disability, or a duplicate count, and includes verification checks for race and placement data.  However, currently some data elements require professional judgments to be made at the time of input.  When data arrive at DECS on the submitted Excel file, a comparison is made between the current and prior year data submitted by the LEA.  Where there is a 20% discrepancy in the data from one year to the next, the District is contacted for an explanation of the discrepancy.  Discussion with DECS staff highlighted the fact that no random audits checks are conducted at the data entry level to ensure the accuracy of the data entered into the system.  Without random audit checks at the data entry level, KDE lacks the capacity for monitoring the accuracy and consistency of the data entry across the State.

KDE does not conduct periodic training across the State for Section 618 data entry personnel.  Rather, training is accomplished on an ad hoc basis depending upon the needs of staff at a particular district. DECS staff provide technical assistance on an individual basis for personnel requiring directions for inputting the data.  The instructions for entering the data are found on KDE’s Web site.  

OSEP is concerned that KDE’s data collection system may not be sufficient to ensure the accurate collection and reporting of 618 data.  Specifically, OSEP is concerned that KDE does not conduct: (1) random audits checks at the data-entry level to ensure the accuracy of the data entered into the system; and (2) periodic training across the State for Section 618 data-entry personnel.  KDE must examine its methods for ensuring accurate collection and reporting of 618 data and report the results to OSEP in the State’s FFY 2003 Annual Performance Report (due March 31, 2005).  

State-wide Assessment

In its review of KDE’s State-wide assessment system, i.e., the Commonwealth Accountability Testing System (CATS), OSEP collected information regarding a number of elements, including whether the State:  (1) establishes procedures for State-wide assessment that meet the participation, alternate assessment, and reporting requirements of Part B, including ensuring the participation of all students, including students with disabilities, and the provision of appropriate accommodations; (2) provides clear guidance and training to public agencies regarding those procedures and requirements; (3) monitors local implementation of those procedures and requirements; and (4) reports on the performance of children with disabilities on those assessments, in a manner consistent with those requirements. CATS is composed of several components, including the Kentucky Core Content Test (KCCT), Writing Portfolio, Norm-Referenced Test (NRT), and alternate portfolio.  In order to better understand KDE’s system for State-wide assessment, OSEP also discussed with your staff how the alternate assessment is aligned with grade-appropriate content standards.2
OSEP has determined, through its review of the KDE’s written procedures for State-wide assessments and KDE reports to the public and the Secretary on the participation and performance of children with disabilities on such assessments, that the procedures, as written, and the reports are not consistent with the Part B regulations at 34 CFR §300.138.  Specifically, KDE’s State-wide assessment system does not provide for the administration of alternate assessments for all State-wide assessments in that it does not provide an alternate assessment in grades 3, 6 and 9 for the Norm Referenced Tests that are administered in those grades.    

KDE has provided extensive training and guidance regarding the participation of children with disabilities ion State-wide assessments, clearly requiring that all children with disabilities participate in each of the general assessments in which non-disabled children participate, unless the IEP team determines that participation in the general assessment is not appropriate for a specific student and that the student will participate in the alternate assessment. The only allowable exemptions from the State-wide assessments are: (a) foreign exchange students; 

(b) students whose primary language is not English; or (c) students with a medical condition. The exemption for a medical condition requires that a physician certify that the student is medically unable to take the assessment and requires concurrence by KDE.  A student’s disability, without other factors, does not exempt the student from the State-wide assessment.  KDE reports to the public on the performance of children with disabilities on the general and alternate assessments it administers in the same detail as it reports on the performance of nondisabled children.  Assessment scores of children with disabilities that are publicly placed in private, residential, and “other than home school” public settings are included in the home or sending school scores.  

The Kentucky Alternate Assessment (KAA) uses a portfolio of student work collected over the course of two or three school years.  The portfolio items are linked to the Kentucky Education Reform Act’s Six Learning Goals and 54 Academic Expectations (with a prioritized subset of 28), defined as what all students in Kentucky should know and be able to do.  During the 2002-2003 school year, less than 1% of all students participating in the State assessment system took the KAA.  Scores for students taking the KAA are reported in the same four levels of academic achievement, as are the scores for the general assessment, i.e., novice, apprentice, proficient and distinguished.  All scores for special education students who take the KAA are included in the accountability system.  There is extensive information regarding the KAA posted on the KDE Web site.
KDE requires the submission of a Portfolio Assessments three times:  in 4th, 8th, and 12th grades.  The subtest scores (math, reading, etc.) for the Alternate Assessment are entered into schools’ accountability scores for the various subjects covered by the KCCT for the grade span in that school.  For example, the 4th grade alternate is entered into the accountability scores for the 4th grade reading, science, and writing scores and the 5th grade math, social studies, arts and humanities and practical living/vocational studies scores.  The same method is used for the 8th grade portfolio (7th and 8th grade scores) and the 12th grade portfolio (10th, 11th and 12th grade scores).  

As previously noted, KDE administers an NRT State-wide in grades 3, 6, and 9. However, there is no alternate assessment for the NRT administered in those grades.  KDE administers the NRT for the purpose of obtaining external norm-reference information and not for student or school accountability purposes.  The Part B regulations at 34 CFR §300.138(a) provide, in part,

Children are included in general State and district-wide assessments programs, with appropriate accommodations and modifications in administration, if necessary.

Thus, KDE has failed to ensure the participation in the NRT testing at grades 3, 6, and 9 of those children requiring an alternate assessment format.

TKDE must submit to OSEP, no later that 60 days from the date of this letter, either:  (1) documentation that it has already its plan for correcteding the noncompliance noted in this letter relating to the irregularities noted with respect to KDE’s Statewide assessment system or (2) its plan for correcting that noncompliance as soon as possible but no later than one year from the date of this letter.

We appreciate the cooperation and assistance provided by your staff during our visit. We look forward to receiving your plan, and to collaborating with Kentucky as you continue to work to improve results for children with disabilities and their families.   

Sincerely,

/s/Troy R. Justesen

Stephanie Smith Lee

Director

Office of Special Education Programs

cc:  Ms. Judy Mallory

�   Documents reviewed as part of the verification process were not reviewed for legal sufficiency but rather to inform OSEP’s understanding of your State’s systems.


2 This letter should not be interpreted as expressing any position about whether KDE’s practice is consistent with the requirements of the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, 20 U.S.C. §6301, et. seq.  





